Consolidated Financial Report June 30, 2015

Contents

| 1-2 |
|------|
| |
| 3 |
| 4 |
| 5 |
| 6 |
| 7-8 |
| 9-21 |
| 22 |
| |
| 23 |
| 24 |
| |



RSM US LLP

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors Melwood Horticultural Training Center, Inc. Upper Marlboro, Maryland

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Melwood Horticultural Training Center, Inc. and Affiliates (the Center) which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Center as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Gaithersburg, Maryland December 2, 2015

PSM. US LLP

Consolidated Balance Sheets June 30, 2015 and 2014 (In Thousands)

| | | 2015 | | 2014 |
|---------------------------------------|----------|-----------------|----|-----------------|
| Assets | | | | |
| Current Assets | | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ | 6,841 | \$ | 3,658 |
| Receivables, net | | 11,628 | | 13,474 |
| Inventory | | 217 | | 281 |
| Prepaid expenses | | 194 | | 251 |
| Total current assets | | 18,880 | | 17,664 |
| Property and Equipment, Net | | 15,715 | | 16,463 |
| Investments | | 3,033 | | 3,039 |
| Other Assets | | 560 | | 519 |
| | <u> </u> | 38,188 | \$ | 37,685 |
| Liabilities and Net Assets | | | | |
| Current Liabilities | | _ | | |
| Accounts payable and accrued expenses | \$ | 6,484 | \$ | 7,320 |
| Accrued payroll and withheld taxes | | 4,244 | | 3,840 |
| Notes payable, current portion | | 750 | | 483 |
| Deferred revenue | | 213 | | 193 |
| Total current liabilities | | 11,691 | | 11,836 |
| Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion | | 3,395 | | 2,862 |
| Other Liabilities | | 1 | | 1 |
| | | 15,087 | | 14,699 |
| Contingencies (Note 12) | | | | |
| Net Assets | | | | |
| Unrestricted | | 00.000 | | 10.047 |
| Operating | | 20,068 | | 19,947 |
| Board designated | | 1,736 21,804 | | 1,671 21,618 |
| Temporarily restricted | | 355 | | 426 |
| Permanently restricted | | 942 | | 942 |
| r ennanemy restricted | | 23,101 | | 22,986 |
| | <u> </u> | 38,188 | \$ | 37,685 |
| | <u> </u> | 00,100 | Ψ | 07,000 |

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Activities Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 (In Thousands)

| | | | | 20 | 15 | | | | 2014 | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|----|------------|----------|------|-------------|------|--------|------|----------|-----|-----------|-------------|-----|--------|--|--|--|
| | | | Tempora | rily | Permanently | | | | | Ten | nporarily | Permanently | | | | | |
| | Un | restricted | Restrict | ed | Restricted | | Total | Unre | stricted | Re | stricted | Restric | ed | Total | | | |
| Support and Revenue | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Public support: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Monetary contributions | \$ | 208 | \$ | - | \$ - | \$ | 208 | \$ | 160 | \$ | - | \$ | - (| 160 | | | |
| Donated items | | 3,112 | | - | - | | 3,112 | | 2,865 | | - | | - | 2,865 | | | |
| Government and private grants | | 958 | | - | - | | 958 | | 702 | | - | | - | 702 | | | |
| Contract revenue | | 70,737 | | - | - | | 70,737 | | 68,164 | | - | | - | 68,164 | | | |
| Sales revenue | | 81 | | - | - | | 81 | | 61 | | - | | - | 61 | | | |
| Service fees | | 8,410 | | - | - | | 8,410 | | 8,338 | | - | | - | 8,338 | | | |
| Other | | 299 | | - | - | | 299 | | 466 | | - | | - | 466 | | | |
| Net assets released from restrictions | | 68 | | (68) | - | | - | | 544 | | (544) | | - | - | | | |
| Total public support | | 83,873 | | (68) | - | | 83,805 | | 81,300 | | (544) | | - | 80,756 | | | |
| Investment (loss) income, net | | (3) | | (3) | - | | (6) | | 152 | | 124 | | - | 276 | | | |
| Total support and revenue | | 83,870 | | (71) | - | | 83,799 | | 81,452 | | (420) | | - | 81,032 | | | |
| Expenses | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Program expenses: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Employment services | | 61,981 | | - | - | | 61,981 | | 60,937 | | - | | - | 60,937 | | | |
| Community services | | 7,368 | | - | - | | 7,368 | | 7,295 | | _ | | - | 7,295 | | | |
| Therapeutic services | | 1,625 | | - | _ | | 1,625 | | 1,541 | | _ | | - | 1,541 | | | |
| Total program expenses | | 70,974 | | - | - | | 70,974 | | 69,773 | | - | | - | 69,773 | | | |
| Supporting services: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Management and general | | 10,028 | | - | _ | | 10,028 | | 7,227 | | _ | | - | 7,227 | | | |
| Fundraising | | 2,682 | | _ | - | | 2,682 | | 2,375 | | _ | | - | 2,375 | | | |
| Total supporting services | | 12,710 | | - | - | | 12,710 | | 9,602 | | - | | - | 9,602 | | | |
| Total expenses | | 83,684 | | - | - | | 83,684 | | 79,375 | | - | | - | 79,375 | | | |
| Change in net assets before | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| deconsolidation of affiliates | | 186 | | (71) | - | | 115 | | 2,077 | | (420) | | - | 1,657 | | | |
| Deconsolidation of affiliates | | - | | - | - | | - | | 62 | | - | | - | 62 | | | |
| Change in net assets | | 186 | | (71) | - | | 115 | | 2,139 | | (420) | | - | 1,719 | | | |
| Net Assets | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Beginning | | 21,618 | | 426 | 942 | | 22,986 | | 19,479 | | 846 | | 942 | 21,267 | | | |
| Ending | \$ | 21,804 | \$ | 355 | \$ 942 | : \$ | 23,101 | \$ | 21,618 | \$ | 426 | \$ | 942 | 22,986 | | | |

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses Year Ended June 30, 2015 (In Thousands)

| | | Program | Expen | penses Supporting Services | | | | | | Supporting Services | | | | |
|---|------------------------|--------------------|-------|----------------------------|----|-----------------------------|----|----------------------------|-----|---------------------|-----|------------------------------|---------|------------------|
| | ployment Services | mmunity ervices | | rapeutic rvices | | Total Program xpenses | | nagement and General | Fun | draising | Sup | Total pporting ervices | - E: | Total xpenses |
| Wages and Salaries Employee Benefits Total salaries and | \$ 30,498 10,679 | \$ 4,631 869 | \$ | 482 77 | \$ | 35,611 11,625 | \$ | 4,864 667 | \$ | 645 127 | \$ | 5,509 794 | \$ | 41,120 12,419 |
| related expenses | 41,177 | 5,500 | | 559 | | 47,236 | | 5,531 | | 772 | | 6,303 | | 53,539 |
| Professional and Consulting Fees | 791 | 288 | | 139 | | 1,218 | | 1,041 | | 459 | | 1,500 | | 2,718 |
| Supplies and Materials | 4,111 | 77 | | 186 | | 4,374 | | 287 | | 32 | | 319 | | 4,693 |
| Buildings and Occupancy | 477 | 330 | | 176 | | 983 | | 895 | | 32 | | 927 | | 1,910 |
| Equipment Maintenance and Rental | 1,308 | 380 | | 50 | | 1,738 | | 1,257 | | 32 | | 1,289 | | 3,027 |
| Support and Contract Services | 12,633 | 138 | | 23 | | 12,794 | | 530 | | 1,340 | | 1,870 | | 14,664 |
| Travel | 130 | 209 | | 250 | | 589 | | 62 | | 7 | | 69 | | 658 |
| Other (Recovery) | 14 | 37 | | 1 | | 52 | | (197) | | - | | (197) | | (145) |
| Interest and Bank Fees | 49 | 6 | | - | | 55 | | 180 | | 3 | | 183 | | 238 |
| Depreciation | 1,291 | 403 | | 241 | | 1,935 | | 442 | | 5 | | 447 | | 2,382 |
| Total expenses | \$ 61,981 | \$ 7,368 | \$ | 1,625 | \$ | 70,974 | \$ | 10,028 | \$ | 2,682 | \$ | 12,710 | \$ | 83,684 |

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses Year Ended June 30, 2014 (In Thousands)

| | | Program | Expen | ses | | Supporting Services | | | | | | |
|---|-----------------------|----------------------|-------|----------------------|------------------------------|----------------------------|-----|------------|----|--------------------------------|---------------|------------------|
| | nployment Services | ommunity Services | | erapeutic ervices | Total Program Expenses | nagement and General | Fur | ndraising | | Total upporting Services | - Е | Total xpenses |
| Wages and Salaries Employee Benefits Total salaries and | \$ 30,904 9,558 | \$ 4,612 816 | \$ | 425 66 | \$ 35,941 10,440 | \$ 2,864 660 | \$ | 460 100 | \$ | 3,324 760 | \$ | 39,265 11,200 |
| related expenses | 40,462 | 5,428 | | 491 | 46,381 | 3,524 | | 560 | | 4,084 | | 50,465 |
| Professional and Consulting Fees | 135 | 229 | | 59 | 423 | 904 | | 356 | | 1,260 | | 1,683 |
| Supplies and Materials | 4,258 | 114 | | 168 | 4,540 | 146 | | 21 | | 167 | | 4,707 |
| Buildings and Occupancy | 542 | 283 | | 198 | 1,023 | 886 | | 61 | | 947 | | 1,970 |
| Equipment Maintenance and Rental | 1,301 | 447 | | 75 | 1,823 | 962 | | 21 | | 983 | | 2,806 |
| Support and Contract Services | 12,106 | 156 | | 30 | 12,292 | 121 | | 1,241 | | 1,362 | | 13,654 |
| Travel | 110 | 219 | | 269 | 598 | 97 | | 9 | | 106 | | 704 |
| Other | 906 | 14 | | 2 | 922 | 42 | | 72 | | 114 | | 1,036 |
| Interest and Bank Fees | 17 | 1 | | 1 | 19 | 210 | | 9 | | 219 | | 238 |
| Depreciation | 1,100 | 404 | | 248 | 1,752 | 335 | | 25 | | 360 | | 2,112 |
| Total expenses | \$ 60,937 | \$ 7,295 | \$ | 1,541 | \$ 69,773 | \$ 7,227 | \$ | 2,375 | \$ | 9,602 | \$ | 79,375 |

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 (In Thousands)

| | 2015 | 2014 | |
|--|-------------|---------|-----|
| Cash Flows From Operating Activities | | | |
| Change in net assets | \$ 115 | \$ 1,71 | 19 |
| Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash | | | |
| provided by operating activities: | | | |
| Depreciation and amortization | 2,382 | 2,11 | 12 |
| Gain on deconsolidation of affiliates | - | (6 | 52) |
| Noncash changes in operating activities from deconsolidation of affiliates | - | (29 | 90) |
| Change in allowance for doubtful accounts | (1,107) | 72 | 21 |
| Unrealized and realized loss (gain) on investment, net | 53 | (20 | 08) |
| Loss on sale of property and equipment | 114 | - | - |
| Changes in assets and liabilities: | | | |
| (Increase) decrease in: | | | |
| Receivables | 2,953 | (95 | 51) |
| Inventory | 64 | (15 | 55) |
| Prepaid expenses | 57 | (6 | 52) |
| Other assets | (41) | 20 | 9 |
| Increase (decrease) in: | | | |
| Accounts payable and accrued expenses | (836) | (16 | 33) |
| Accrued payroll and withheld taxes | 404 | 38 | 30 |
| Deferred revenue | 20 | (4 | 11) |
| Other liabilities | - | (| (8) |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | 4,178 | 3,20 |)1 |
| Cash Flows From Investing Activities | | | |
| Purchase of property and equipment | (1,748) | (67 | 75) |
| Proceeds from sale of property and equipment | (1,140) | • | 16 |
| Purchase of investments | (4,350) | (39 | - |
| Proceeds from sale of investments | 4,303 | 32 | , |
| Net cash (used in) investing activities | (1,795) | (72 | |
| | (-,) | 7 | |

(Continued)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued) Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 (In Thousands)

| | | 2015 | 2014 |
|---|---|-------|-------------|
| Cash Flows From Financing Activities | | | |
| Proceeds from notes payable | \$ | 1,332 | \$ - |
| Principal payments on notes payable | | (532) | (453) |
| Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities | | 800 | (453) |
| Net increase in cash and cash equivalents | | 3,183 | 2,021 |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents | | | |
| Beginning | | 3,658 | 1,637 |
| Ending | <u>\$</u> | 6,841 | \$ 3,658 |
| Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information | | | |
| Interest paid | \$ | 124 | \$ 128 |
| Deconsolidation of affiliates | | | |
| Cash | \$ | - | \$ 115 |
| Property and equipment | | - | 1,482 |
| Notes payable | | - | (1,834) |
| Other assets (liabilities) | | - | 175 |
| Gain on deconsolidation | <u> \$ </u> | - | \$ (62) |

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of activities: Melwood Horticultural Training Center, Inc. and Affiliates (the Center) is comprised of two entities: Melwood Horticultural Training Center, Inc. (MHTC) and Melwood-Dolly Housing, Inc. (MDH).

MHTC, a Maryland corporation, supports and empowers people with disabilities throughout the local Washington, D.C. national capital area, creating opportunities for their personal success. Programs include vocational training, employment, community living, leisure, travel and recreational services. MHTC serves over 2,400 people annually, is fully licensed by the Developmental Disabilities Administration of the State of Maryland, and is accredited by the Rehabilitation Accreditation Commission (CARF) and the American Camp Association (ACA). MHTC's programs are recognized locally, nationally and internationally.

Employment is provided through service contracts with major federal government agencies, with state, county, local governments and commercial firms. Financial stability is enhanced through fundraising initiatives that include a vehicle donation program. Residential services are furnished in homes owned or leased by MHTC with staff provided to meet the needs of the residents. A unique recreation and travel program provides leisure opportunities either on-site at an MHTC-owned camping facility or through planned vacation trips.

MDH is a Maryland corporation, financially supported by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) funds under Section 202 of the National Housing Act, or Section 811 of the National Affordable Housing Act. Sections 202 and 811 require compliance with regulations as required by HUD. MHTC has control over the Board of Directors of MDH.

A summary of significant accounting policies of the Center is as follows:

Basis of accounting: The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting, whereby, support and revenue are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Basis of presentation: The consolidated financial statement presentation follows the recommendations under the Non-Profit Entities Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Under this ASC, the Center is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets.

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MHTC and its affiliate, MDH. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated for consolidation.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Center considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents held in the investment portfolio are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in reporting cash flows.

Financial risk: The Center maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Center has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The Center believes it is not exposed to any significant financial risk on cash.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Center invests in professionally managed portfolio that consists of various securities. Such investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit. Due to the level of risk associated with such investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of such investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term could materially affect investment balances and the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

Receivables: Receivables primarily consist of amounts due on business contracts from the federal government, and are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by using the historical experience applied to an aging of accounts. Receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded when received. The provision for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2015 and 2014, was \$174 and \$1,281, respectively.

Unbilled accounts receivables are included in receivables and consist of services performed prior to billing the federal government. Billings usually occur in the month after the services are performed or in accordance with specific contractual provisions.

Inventory: Inventory consists primarily of donated vehicles. Donated vehicles are stated at an estimated fair market value at the date of receipt.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations for the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operations as incurred, and significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. MHTC capitalizes all asset purchases in excess of \$1.5; MDH capitalizes all asset purchases in excess of \$0.5.

Depreciation of furniture, equipment, buildings and leasehold improvements is provided on a straight-line basis

Donated property and equipment are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt. The Center releases restrictions for contributions restricted to property and equipment as the property and equipment is placed into service. In the absence of donor-imposed restrictions on the use of the assets, gifts of long-lived assets are reported as unrestricted support.

Valuation of long-lived assets: The Center reviews property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of the long-lived asset is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less costs to sell.

Investments: Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are reflected at fair market value. To adjust the carrying values of these securities, the change in fair market value is recorded as a component of investment income (loss) in the consolidated statements of activities.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Support and revenue: Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Temporarily restricted net assets are reported as unrestricted net assets if the restrictions are met in the same period received.

Unconditional promises to give, including grants, are recognized as revenue or gains in the period received and as assets, decreases of liabilities or expenses, depending on the form of the benefits received. Conditional promises to give, including grants, are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Fixed-price contract revenue is recognized on the percentage-of-completion method. Under this method, individual contract revenue earned is measured by the percentage relationship that contract costs incurred bear to management's estimate of total contract costs. Time and materials contracts are recognized as time is incurred at the contractual rates and materials consumed in the performance of the contract. Contract revenue received in the current period for future periods are recorded as deferred revenue.

Service fees and sales revenue are recognized when services are provided or at the point of sale.

Donated materials consist of vehicles from private donors and are recognized at the auction sale price which approximates fair value. Funds received from the sale of vehicles are used by the Center in various ongoing programs.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Center incurred advertising costs of \$918 and \$893, respectively.

Income taxes: MHTC and MDH are generally exempt from federal income taxes under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). In addition, they qualify for charitable contribution deductions and have been classified as organizations that are not private foundations. Income that is not related to exempt purposes, less applicable deductions, is subject to federal and state corporate income taxes. MHTC and MDH did not have any net unrelated business income for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

The Center adopted the accounting standard on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, which addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the consolidated financial statements. Under this guidance, the Center may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more-likely-than-not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the consolidated financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes also addresses derecognition, classification, interest and penalties on income taxes and accounting in interim periods.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Management evaluated the Center's tax positions and concluded that the Center has taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements to comply with the provisions of this guidance. Generally, the Center is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. federal, state or local tax authorities for years before 2012.

Functional allocation of expenses: The costs of providing various programs and supporting services have been summarized on a functional basis in the consolidated statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain supporting general and administrative costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Use of estimates: The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events: The Center evaluated subsequent events through December 2, 2015, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 2. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2015, and depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2015, are as follows:

| | Estimated | | Ac | cumulated | Net Book | | |
|----------------------------|---------------|--------------|----|------------|--------------|----|------------|
| Asset Category | Useful Lives | Cost | De | preciation | Value | De | oreciation |
| | | | | | | | |
| Buildings and improvements | 6 to 40 years | \$ 20,623 | \$ | 10,242 | \$ 10,381 | \$ | 719 |
| Transportation equipment | 3 to 7 years | 7,594 | | 6,333 | 1,261 | | 662 |
| Training equipment | | | | | | | |
| and furnishings | 3 to 10 years | 3,648 | | 3,121 | 527 | | 316 |
| Office equipment | 3 to 7 years | 5,205 | | 3,403 | 1,802 | | 684 |
| Land | _ | 1,508 | | - | 1,508 | | - |
| Software in progress | _ | 236 | | - | 236 | | - |
| Residential equipment | 3 to 10 years | 12 | | 12 | - | | 1 |
| | | \$ 38,826 | \$ | 23,111 | \$ 15,715 | \$ | 2,382 |

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 2. Property and Equipment (Continued)

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2014, and depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014, are as follows:

| | Estimated | | Ac | cumulated | Net Book | | |
|----------------------------|---------------|--------------|----|------------|--------------|----|------------|
| Asset Category | Useful Lives | Cost | De | preciation | Value | De | oreciation |
| | | | | | | | |
| Buildings and improvements | 6 to 40 years | \$ 20,579 | \$ | 9,515 | \$ 11,064 | \$ | 721 |
| Transportation equipment | 3 to 7 years | 7,043 | | 5,906 | 1,137 | | 557 |
| Training equipment | - | | | | | | |
| and furnishings | 3 to 10 years | 2,997 | | 2,842 | 155 | | 328 |
| Office equipment | 3 to 7 years | 5,100 | | 2,725 | 2,375 | | 505 |
| Land | _ | 1,508 | | - | 1,508 | | - |
| Software in progress | _ | 223 | | - | 223 | | - |
| Residential equipment | 3 to 10 years | 12 | | 11 | 1 | | 1 |
| | | \$ 37,462 | \$ | 20,999 | \$ 16,463 | \$ | 2,112 |

Note 3. Investments

Investments at June 30, 2015 and 2014, consist of the following:

| | 2015 | 2014 |
|---|-------------|-------------|
| Equity securities, including master limited partnerships, | | |
| exchange traded funds and mutual funds | \$ 1,642 | \$ 1,106 |
| Fixed income securities and mutual funds | 1,251 | 1,689 |
| Cash and cash equivalents | 140 | 244 |
| | \$ 3,033 | \$ 3,039 |

Investment income for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, is comprised as follows:

| | 2015 | 2014 |
|---|--------------|-------------|
| Interest and dividend income | \$ 93 | \$ 91 |
| Realized and unrealized (loss) gain Investment fees | (53) (46) | 208 (23) |
| | \$ (6) | \$ 276 |

Note 4. Line of Credit

The Center maintains a \$10 million revolving line of credit with a bank, which will expire in March 2016. Borrowings are collateralized by all of the Center's assets. Monthly interest payments are the lower of the bank's 30-day indexed prime rate (3.25% at June 30, 2015), plus 0.5% or 3.75%. There was no balance due on the line of credit at June 30, 2015 and 2014.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 5. Notes Payable

Notes payable at June 30, 2015 and 2014, consist of the following:

| | 2015 | 2014 |
|---------------------|-------------|-------------|
| | | |
| Mortgage/term notes | \$ 2,200 | \$ 2,371 |
| Automobile loans | 1,945 | 974 |
| | \$ 4,145 | \$ 3,345 |

Mortgage notes: The mortgage notes consist of obligations with monthly principal payments and interest totaling approximately \$19 plus interest (ranging from 0% to 6%), maturing at various dates through December 2040, and they are collateralized by the related assets.

Automobile loans: MHTC has automobile loans with interest rates ranging from 4.35% to 4.65% and payment terms over 60 months. Monthly payments on these loans as of June 30, 2015 total \$52.

Term loan: A bank term loan of \$2,085 was acquired during April 2009. The terms of the loan were as follows:

- Interest rate equal to prime
- Interest only payments for the first 12 months
- Amortizable thereafter on a 30-year term
- Balloon payment in full in the 60th month (maturity date of April 2014)

Subsequent to June 30, 2013, the Center entered into a refinance agreement to extend the term loan's maturity date to July 2023. The monthly payment for the new loan is \$18 with an interest rate of 3.5%.

The minimum principal payments on the mortgage, term loan and automobile loans at June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Year Ending June 30,

| 2016 | \$ 750 |
|------------|-------------|
| 2017 | 777 |
| 2018 | 458 |
| 2019 | 477 |
| 2020 | 440 |
| Thereafter | 1,243 |
| | \$ 4,145 |

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, was \$124 and \$128, respectively.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 6. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurement Topic of the FASB ASC establishes a fair value hierarchy that is based on the valuation inputs used in the fair value measurements. This topic applies to all assets and liabilities that are being measured and reported on a fair value basis. The topic requires that assets and liabilities carried at fair value be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

- Level 1 Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2 Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs corroborated by market data.
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

In determining the appropriate levels, the Center performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities that are subject to the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic. At each reporting period, all assets and liabilities for which the fair value measurement is based on significant unobservable inputs are classified as Level 3. The tables below present the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis by level within the hierarchy:

| | June 30, 2015 | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---------------|-------|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|--|--|
| | | Total | | Level 1 | | _evel 2 | | Level 3 | | |
| Fixed income | | | | | | | | | | |
| Government bonds | \$ | 589 | \$ | - | \$ | 589 | \$ | - | | |
| Corporate bonds | | 215 | | - | | 215 | | - | | |
| Fixed income mutual funds | | 447 | | 447 | | - | | - | | |
| Equity (and related) securities | | | | | | | | | | |
| Alternative: | | | | | | | | | | |
| Real estate investment trusts | | 142 | | 142 | | - | | - | | |
| Master limited partnerships | | 157 | | 157 | | - | | - | | |
| U.S. large cap growth | | 207 | | 207 | | - | | - | | |
| U.S. large cap value | | 362 | | 362 | | - | | - | | |
| U.S. mid cap growth | | 127 | | 127 | | - | | - | | |
| U.S. mid cap value | | 36 | | 36 | | - | | - | | |
| U.S. small cap growth | | 94 | | 94 | | - | | - | | |
| U.S. small cap value | | 33 | | 33 | | - | | - | | |
| U.S. equities other | | 6 | | 6 | | - | | - | | |
| Canadian equities | | 12 | | 12 | | - | | - | | |
| European equities | | 258 | | 258 | | - | | - | | |
| Japan equities | | 83 | | 83 | | - | | - | | |
| Asia Pacific (excluding Japan) equities | | 4 | | 4 | | - | | - | | |
| Israel equities | | 13 | | 13 | | - | | - | | |
| EEMA equities | | 42 | | 42 | | - | | - | | |
| Asia equities | | 36 | | 36 | | - | | - | | |
| Latin America equities | | 30 | | 30 | | - | | - | | |
| Money market fund | | 90 | | 90 | | - | | - | | |
| | \$ | 2,983 | \$ | 2,179 | \$ | 804 | \$ | - | | |

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 6. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

| | | | June 3 | 30, 20 | 14 | |
|------------------------------|-------------|----|---------|---------|-------|---------|
| | Total | l | _evel 1 | Level 2 | | _evel 3 |
| Fixed income | | | | | | |
| Corporate bonds | \$ 880 | \$ | - | \$ | 880 | \$ - |
| Government bonds | 547 | | - | | 547 | - |
| Municipal bonds | 262 | | - | | 262 | - |
| Equity securities | | | | | | |
| International | 237 | | 237 | | - | - |
| Diversified emerging markets | 115 | | 115 | | - | - |
| Basic materials | 114 | | 114 | | - | - |
| Financial | 104 | | 104 | | - | - |
| Technology | 87 | | 87 | | - | - |
| Services | 81 | | 81 | | - | - |
| Consumer goods | 80 | | 80 | | - | - |
| Healthcare | 69 | | 69 | | - | - |
| Multi-cap | 69 | | 69 | | - | - |
| Mid-cap growth | 68 | | 68 | | - | - |
| Large growth | 34 | | 34 | | - | - |
| Small growth | 22 | | 22 | | - | - |
| Industrial goods | 18 | | 18 | | - | - |
| Trading-inverse debt | 5 | | 5 | | - | - |
| Utilities | 3 | | 3 | | | |
| | \$ 2,795 | \$ | 1,106 | \$ | 1,689 | \$ - |

The equity securities of the Center are publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange and are considered Level 1 items. The Center's government bonds, municipal bonds and corporate bonds are priced based on their stated interest rates and quality ratings. The interest and quality ratings are observable at commonly quoted intervals for the full term of the instruments and are, therefore, considered Level 2 items.

Cash accounts totaling \$50 and \$244 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are not included in the above tables because they are recorded at cost.

Note 7. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets include donor-restricted and other funds, which are only available for program activities or general support designated for future years. Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

| | Balance | | Investment | | | | | Balance |
|----------------------------------|---------------|-----|------------|-----|----|----------|---------------|---------|
| | June 30, 2014 | | Losses | | h | Released | June 30, 2015 | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Donor-restricted endowment funds | \$ | 426 | \$ | (3) | \$ | 68 | \$ | 355 |

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 8. Board Designated and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

The Board of Directors of MHTC has interpreted the Maryland-enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. The Board has determined that the original gift value for donor-restricted funds was \$942 (100% perpetual duration) as of June 30, 2015 and 2014. As a result of this interpretation, the Center classifies as permanently restricted net assets: (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets, until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Center in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Center considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

- The duration and preservation of the fund
- The purposes of the Center and the donor-restricted endowment fund
- General economic conditions
- The possible effect of inflation and deflation
- The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
- Other resources of the Center
- The investment policies of the Center

Return objectives and risk parameters: MHTC has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment, while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that MHTC must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period, as well as board designated funds. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner to seek an average annual return that is higher than a similar group of investments, depending on the stated investment objectives. A specific percentage rate of return, due to the state of the economy, has not been stated. This objective shall have a long-term, indefinite time horizon, and shall provide a wide diversification of investments to reduce risk and to produce incremental returns.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 8. Board Designated and Permanently Restricted Net Assets (Continued)

Strategies employed for achieving objectives: To satisfy its long-term, incremental rate of return objectives, MHTC relies on a total return strategy, in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). MHTC targets a diversified asset allocation base with the following parameters:

| | Exposure | | | | | |
|--------------|----------|--------|---------|--|--|--|
| | Minimum | Target | Maximum | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Equities | 40% | 45% | 50% | | | |
| Fixed income | 40% | 45% | 50% | | | |
| Cash | 5% | 10% | 10% | | | |

Spending policy and how the investment objective relates to spending policy: Both donor-restricted and board designated funds allow management to withdraw income from the endowment fund to be used for general operations. Effective for the year ended June 30, 2015, MHTC has adopted a 5% spending policy covering donor-restricted endowment funds. However, management, to date, has elected to roll over income to unrestricted funds for the board designated fund type.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2015, is as follows:

| | Unrestricted | | Temporarily Restricted | | Permanently Restricted | | Total |
|--|--------------|------------|---------------------------|----------|---------------------------|----------|----------------------|
| Board designated funds Donor-restricted endowment funds | \$ | 1,736 - | \$ | - 355 | \$ | - 942 | \$ 1,736 1,297 |
| Total funds | \$ | 1,736 | \$ | 355 | \$ | 942 | \$ 3,033 |

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2014, is as follows:

| | Unrestricted | | Temporarily Restricted | | Permanently Restricted | | Total | |
|--|--------------|------------|---------------------------|----------|---------------------------|----------|-------|----------------|
| Board designated funds Donor-restricted endowment funds | \$ | 1,671 - | \$ | - 426 | \$ | - 942 | \$ | 1,671 1,368 |
| Total funds | \$ | 1,671 | \$ | 426 | \$ | 942 | \$ | 3,039 |

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 8. Board Designated and Permanently Restricted Net Assets (Continued)

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2015, are as follows:

| | Unrestricted | | Temporarily Restricted | Permanently Restricted | | Total |
|--|--------------|-------|---------------------------|---------------------------|--------|-------|
| Endowment net assets, beginning of year Investment return: | \$ | 1,671 | \$ 426 | \$ | 942 \$ | 3,039 |
| Investment income | | 51 | 42 | | - | 93 |
| Net realized and unrealized loss | | (29) | (24) | | - | (53) |
| Total investment return | | 22 | 18 | | - | 40 |
| Other changes: | | | | | | |
| Appropriations | | - | (68) | | - | (68) |
| Designations | | 70 | - | | - | 70 |
| Management fees | | (27) | (21) | | - | (48) |
| Endowment net assets, end of year | \$ | 1,736 | \$ 355 | \$ | 942 \$ | 3,033 |

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2014, are as follows:

| | Unrestricted | | Temporarily Restricted | ermanently Restricted | Total | | |
|--|--------------|-------|---------------------------|--------------------------|-------|-------|--|
| Endowment net assets, beginning of year Investment return: | \$ | 1,519 | \$ 302 | \$ 942 | \$ | 2,763 | |
| Investment return. Investment income | | 50 | 41 | - | | 91 | |
| Net realized and unrealized gain | | 114 | 94 | - | | 208 | |
| Total investment return | | 164 | 135 | - | | 299 | |
| Other changes: | | | | | | | |
| Management fees | | (12) | (11) | - | | (23) | |
| Endowment net assets, end of year | \$ | 1,671 | \$ 426 | \$ 942 | \$ | 3,039 | |

Note 9. Board Designated Net Assets

Unrestricted board designated net assets at June 30, 2015 and 2014, consisted of \$1,736 and \$1,671, respectively, designated by the Center's Board of Directors to be used for the Melwood Endowment Fund.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 10. Retirement and Other Compensation Plans

The Center has a contributory 403(b) Retirement Plan for all eligible non-Service Contract Act (SCA) employees. Employees are able to participate in the Plan immediately upon hire. The Plan provides a matching employer contribution under certain conditions. Employees are eligible to receive employer matching contributions after one year of service and 1,000 hours of work with the Center. All participating employees are eligible to receive matching contributions equal to half of their elected deferral up to 5% of wages. Employees who began employment with the Center on or after January 1, 2005, are subject to a five-year graded vesting schedule; all other employees are fully vested in the Center's contributions immediately upon receipt. For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Center contributed \$244 and \$149, respectively, to the Plan.

The Center has a contributory 401(k) Retirement Plan for all SCA employees. Eligible employees are able to elect to have a portion of their pay deferred to this plan. There is no employer match. Additionally, the Plan contains the Melwood Service Contract Act Retirement Plan (SCRP).

The Center has the SCRP falling under the SCA, for its service contract employees working ten or more hours per month. Employees earn Health and Welfare funding on a per hour paid basis up to a maximum of 40 hours per week. Health and Welfare dollars pay for active employee benefits. Excess funds are then collected in a Premium Reserve Account until it had a balance equivalent to three months' premiums. After that, excess Health and Welfare funding is placed in the SCRP on a quarterly basis.

The Center has an executive severance obligation for the President/Chief Executive Officer in the case of an involuntary termination without cause. Upon such an event, a predetermined portion of one year's annual salary and any prorated earned bonus is required to be paid by the Center to the President/Chief Executive Officer. This payment may be made in one lump sum or over a reasonable period of time using standard pay practices at the Center's discretion.

The Center has established a Deferred Compensation Plan under Section 457 of the IRC. The Center's contributions to the Plan are discretionary. For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, there were no participants in the Plan, there were \$0 contributions made to the Plan and there were \$0 liabilities in the Plan.

Note 11. Customer Concentrations

During the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, approximately 84% of the Center's revenue was substantially derived from contracts with the federal government through the AbilityOne program. Significant reduction of funding under these contracts would have a significant impact on the operations of the Center.

Note 12. Contingencies

Grants: The Center receives support and revenue in the form of grants and contributions. The principal grantor is the State of Maryland, Department of Health and Mental Hygiene. Final determination of allowable costs is subject to audit or review by representatives or agents of the appropriate grantor. Management does not anticipate any adjustments by the grantors. The Center relies on the continued receipt of grants and contributions to provide ongoing programs.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (In Thousands)

Note 12. Contingencies (Continued)

Letters of credit: The Center has an \$820 letter of credit with a financial institution to cover potential workers' compensation claims. The letter with the financial institution is required by the Center's workers' compensation insurer and allows the insurer to draw on it at any time. In addition, another letter of credit for \$408 is in effect with the state of Maryland to cover unemployment costs, as the Center is self-insured. These letters of credit continue until final termination of the prior workers' compensation and until continued unemployment claims are finalized.

Claims and litigation: In the ordinary course of business, the Center is a party to claims and litigation. Management, based on consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that the ultimate outcome of these matters will have no material impact on the financial position, change in net assets or liquidity of the Center.

Self-insured agreement: MHTC maintains a self-insurance program for its unemployment insurance coverage for the states of Maryland, Virginia and the District of Columbia. Self-insurance cost is accrued based on claims reported as of the balance sheet date, as well as an estimated liability for claims incurred but not reported. The total accrued liability for self-insured unemployment costs was \$75 and \$104 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2014, MHTC maintains a self-insured medical health plan model and a high-deductible workers' compensation plan, whereby MHTC covers the cost of medical claims its employees incurs. MHTC has stop loss coverage for this plan to cover claims in excess of \$175 per participant per year. Employees make contributions to the plan consistent with premiums paid per the old plan based on type of coverage. MHTC's liabilities for the self-insured medical health plan and workers' compensation plan are as follows:

| Self-insured medical health plan |
|----------------------------------|
| Workers' compensation plan |

| | 2015 | 2014 | | | | | | |
|----|------|------|-----|--|--|--|--|--|
| \$ | 714 | \$ | 690 | | | | | |
| Ψ | 110 | Ψ | 58 | | | | | |
| \$ | 824 | \$ | 748 | | | | | |



RSM US LLP

Independent Auditor's Report on the Supplementary Information

To the Board of Directors
Melwood Horticultural Training Center, Inc.
Upper Marlboro, Maryland

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Melwood Horticultural Training Center, Inc. and Affiliates (the Center) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, and have issued our report thereon, which contained an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. See pages 1 and 2. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial position and results of activities of the individual entities and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Gaithersburg, Maryland December 2, 2015

RSM. US LLP

Consolidating Balance Sheet June 30, 2015 (In Thousands)

| , | | М | elwood | | | | |
|---|--|-----|---------------------------|-----|-------------------------------|----|--|
| | | | Dolly | Con | solidating | Со | nsolidated |
| | MHTC | Hou | sing, Inc. | | justment | | Total |
| Assets | | | | | | | |
| Current Assets | | | | | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 6,787 | \$ | 54 | \$ | - | \$ | 6,841 |
| Receivables, net | 11,802 | | 9 | | (183) | | 11,628 |
| Inventory | 217 | | - | | - | | 217 |
| Prepaid expenses | 194 | | - | | - | | 194 |
| Total current assets | 19,000 | | 63 | | (183) | | 18,880 |
| Property and Equipment, Net | 15,375 | | 340 | | - | | 15,715 |
| Investments | 3,033 | | - | | - | | 3,033 |
| Other Assets | 492 | | 68 | | - | | 560 |
| | \$ 37,900 | \$ | 471 | \$ | (183) | \$ | 38,188 |
| Liabilities and Net Assets Current Liabilities Accounts payable and accrued expenses Accrued payroll and withheld taxes Notes payable, current portion Deferred revenue Total current liabilities | \$ 6,484 4,244 750 213 11,691 | \$ | 183 - - - 183 | \$ | (183) - - - (183) | \$ | 6,484 4,244 750 213 11,691 |
| Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion | 2,855 | | 540 | | - | | 3,395 |
| Other Liabilities | | | 11 | | - (100) | | 1 |
| Net Assets | 14,546 | | 724 | | (183) | | 15,087 |
| Unrestricted | | | | | | | |
| Operating | 20,321 | | (253) | | _ | | 20,068 |
| Board designated | 1,736 | | - | | _ | | 1,736 |
| | 22,057 | | (253) | | - | | 21,804 |
| Temporarily restricted | 355 | | _ | | - | | 355 |
| Permanently restricted | 942 | | - | | - | | 942 |
| • | 23,354 | | (253) | | - | | 23,101 |
| | \$ 37,900 | \$ | 471 | \$ | (183) | \$ | 38,188 |

Consolidating Statement of Activities Year Ended June 30, 2015 (In Thousands)

| | Melwood | | | | | | | | |
|---|---------|--------|---------------|-------|------------|---------------|-------|--------------|--|
| | | | | Dolly | | Consolidating | | Consolidated | |
| | MHTC | | Housing, Inc. | | Adjustment | | Total | | |
| Support and Revenue | | | | | | | | | |
| Public support: | | | | | | | | | |
| Monetary contributions | \$ | 208 | \$ | - | \$ | - | \$ | 208 | |
| Donated items | | 3,112 | | - | | - | | 3,112 | |
| Government and private grants | | 958 | | - | | - | | 958 | |
| Contract revenue | | 70,737 | | - | | - | | 70,737 | |
| Sales revenue | | 81 | | - | | - | | 81 | |
| Service fees | | 8,410 | | - | | - | | 8,410 | |
| Other | | 223 | | 76 | | - | | 299 | |
| Total public support | | 83,729 | | 76 | | - | | 83,805 | |
| Investment loss | | (6) | | - | | - | | (6) | |
| Total support and revenue | | 83,723 | | 76 | | - | | 83,799 | |
| Expenses | | | | | | | | | |
| Program expenses: | | | | | | | | | |
| Employment services | | 61,981 | | - | | - | | 61,981 | |
| Community services | | 7,259 | | 109 | | - | | 7,368 | |
| Recreational services | | 1,625 | | - | | - | | 1,625 | |
| Total program expenses | | 70,865 | | 109 | | - | | 70,974 | |
| Supporting services: | | | | | | | | | |
| Management and general | | 10,028 | | - | | - | | 10,028 | |
| Fundraising | | 2,682 | | - | | - | | 2,682 | |
| Total supporting services | | 12,710 | | - | | - | | 12,710 | |
| Total expenses | | 83,575 | | 109 | | - | | 83,684 | |
| Change in net assets before deconsolidation of affiliates | | 148 | | (33) | | - | | 115 | |
| Deconsolidation of affiliates | | - | | - | | - | | | |
| Change in net assets | | 148 | | (33) | | - | | 115 | |
| Net Assets | | | | | | | | | |
| Beginning | | 23,206 | | (220) | | - | | 22,986 | |
| Ending | \$ | 23,354 | \$ | (253) | \$ | - | \$ | 23,101 | |